AMES TRANSIT AGENCY BOARD OF TRUSTEES CYRIDE CONFERENCE ROOM

June 25, 2014

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: 3:15 P.M.
- 2. Approval of May 21, 2014 Minutes
- 3. Public Comments
- 4. New Grant Opportunity
- 5. ISU Special Student Fee & Tuition Committee Discussions
- 6. Transit Director's Report
- 7. Set Time and Place of Summer Meetings:
 - July 30, 2014 (if needed) 3:15 pm
 - August 26, 2014 8:00 am
- 8. Adjourn

AMES, IOWA May 21, 2014

The Ames Transit Agency Board of Trustees met on May 21, 2014 at 3:15 p.m. in the CyRide Conference room. President Murrell called the meeting to order via conference call at 3:19 p.m. Present: Trustees Haila, Goodman, and Madden. Trustee Abbas was present via conference call. Absent: Trustee Schainker.

elects new officers each June to meet the Ames Municipal Code, Chapter 26A requirements. Trustee Murrell is the current Vice President and expressed an interest in the position of President. During the orientation meeting with the new GSB Representative Hamad Abbas, Hamad expressed interest in becoming the transit board representative on the Ames Area Metropolitan Planning Organization vacated by President Rediske.

Trustee Goodman made a motion to nominate Trustee Murrell as President and Trustee Abbas, AAMPO representative. Motion was seconded by Trustee Madden. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

With the appointment of Trustee Murrell as President, the Vice President position was open. Trustee Madden made a motion to nominate Trustee Haila as Vice President. Trustee Goodman seconded the motion. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF APRIL 15 and 23, 2014 MINUTES: Before the approval of the minutes, Director Kyras addressed corrections brought to her attention regarding the April 15, 2014 minutes. At the top of page 5, minutes should read \$80,000 to \$90,000 per bus stall. Paragraph on page 6, beginning with Trustee Goodman, should be eliminated from the minutes as it did not read correctly.

Trustee Haila made a motion to approve the amended April 15, 2014 minutes and April 23, 2014 minutes. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

GRANT APPLICATIONS - IOWA CLEAN AIR ATTAINMENT AND STATE SPECIAL PROJECT:

Director Kyras explained that at the March 2014 meeting, CyRide staff requested that the transit board consider submitting an application for an Iowa Clean Air Attainment program grant. Grants for this program will most likely be due in October 2014 with project start dates of January 2015, which is six months into CyRide's 2014-2015 operating budget year. This grant will fund increased service levels/new routes. CyRide's project would request operating funds for the Green and Brown weekday service increase between 11:30 am and 6:00pm and Sunday Blue route service 11:00 am to 5:00 pm for the second and third years of service as well as for two buses to support

these services. The first year of operating costs for these increased services could be requested in an Iowa DOT Special Project grant application. In total, almost \$500,000 per year in operating funds could be saved over a three-year period as well as funding new buses.

Trustee Goodman made a motion to approve submission of the Iowa Clean Air Attainment Program grant application in an amount not to exceed \$1,038,981 and a State Special Projects grant application for up to \$158,645. Trustee Haila seconded the motion. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

AMES INTERMODAL FACILITY LEASE WITH EXECUTIVE EXPRESS: Director Kyras shared with the transit board that the lease agreement with Executive Express for tenant space at the Ames Intermodal Facility expires on June 30, 2014. A new lease has been drafted with the same language as the current contract with two modifications: date changes to reflect the new year and a \$10 per month increase in lease rate. She indicated a summary of the contract terms was included in the board write-up. Executive Express has approved the lease.

Trustee Madden made a motion to approve the Ames Intermodal Facility Commercial Tenant Lease with Executive Express. Trustee Haila seconded the motion.

Trustee Goodman asked if an announcement was distributed to see if other providers would be interested in this space. Director Kyras said Executive Express has leased the space since 2012 and that only one other carrier indicated any interest in the space, but later indicated they had secured other space. She indicated that if there is additional interest by another party, she would share this information with the transit board for direction on how to proceed.

President Murrell called for the vote. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

that the second contract for consideration is with Durham School Services, which also expires June 30, 2014. This service is CyRide's creative effort to efficiently address its peak hour demand. She explained that Durham provides limited trips during the busiest times of the day to reduce CyRide's bus and driver requirements. Durham can provide up to seven buses and drivers to assist in this effort. The school buses end their service and then provide one trip from one/two CyRide bus stops into campus. This past year four school buses were utilized.

Barbara Neal, Operations Supervisor, indicated this is a win, win situation for CyRide and the school bus operator as CyRide can contract for buses and has the ability to

add/cancel trips daily to match buses/drivers to varying daily demands. The result is that CyRide does not need to hire up to seven additional drivers or have seven additional buses. Barb shared that the disadvantage to using school buses such as not having two doors to load/unload passengers, so they are placed on routes that do not need transfers, such as the Cardinal route. Cancellation of Ames school can create a problem as CyRide drivers and buses are not available to provide this additional service when school buses do not operate.

Director Kyras explained that a single bid has been received for this service and that the board would be committing to the first year of the contract, with the option for four additional annual renewals.

Trustee Haila mentioned his concern in signing a contract for one year with four options as it added a percentage on top of a percentage, but understood is still was under 4% over the five year period.

Trustee Goodman made a motion to approve the contract with Durham School Services for \$54.20 per trip for the 2014-2015 school year. Trustee Madden seconded the motion. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

DIAL-A-RIDE CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH HIRTA: Director Kyras explained that CyRide's contract with the Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency (HIRTA) for Dial-A-Ride (DAR) services on behalf of CyRide as required by the Federal Transit Administration was an annual renewal as the three-year contract expires on June 30, 2015. She further explained that annually both parties were required to approve a renewal of the contract and that HIRTA had provided a letter indicating their interest in continuing this service for CyRide. She shared that at the last transit board meeting the results of the passenger satisfaction survey and DAR public meeting has been discussed with board members. She also shared that, as a result, the letter amending the contract was attached requiring HIRTA to contact customers every time their pickup time is modified even a few minutes.

Following a lengthy discussion, Director Kyras acknowledged that HIRTA had struggled in learning about the community as only a portion of their offices are physically located within the community and in developing efficient schedules. She indicated that progress had been made; however, understands that individuals still have concerns with the service. She further explained that, until operating DAR service, HIRTA had only operated rural, county service. She acknowledged that the service was not perfect, but shared that she believes that combining both the Story County door-to-door service and the DAR door-to-door service together within Ames was a good service model.

Trustee Goodman shared that he was disappointed with the current level of customer satisfaction. He shared that with almost two years of experience that he felt the improvements were coming too slowly. He shared that he would like to see some type of incentive payment be incorporated into their fee structure that would reduce their fee if they were not able to achieve an agreed-upon level of performance.

Trustee Madden shared that he understands the challenge for HIRTA to match the quality of CyRide service, as CyRide is a well run organization. He also stated that he did not have personal experience using HIRTA so did not believe he could fairly judge their service level. He stated that the transit board needed to decide, from a financial commitment standpoint, if they are ready to increase the cost to bring it under CyRide's direct control. Further, he stated that HIRTA isn't designed to be a personal taxi service and, is not meeting that particular need, but shared that hopefully their service will improve. The only other alternative is for CyRide to provide the service and he indicated that he does not believe CyRide is ready to bring it in house at this time.

Trustee Goodman agrees the transit board is not ready to bring it in house but, he struggles with HIRTA's customer service.

Director Kyras cautioned board members that discussions predicating full payment on performance criteria might not be acceptable to HIRTA and the only resulting option at that point was for CyRide to provide the service. This would require CyRide to be prepared in a little over a month to have buses purchased, drivers hired and be ready to operate service. She shared that she did not believe this was physically possible to accomplish. Trustee Haila pointed out that federal funding is not available if the service is operated by CyRide and that 100% of the cost of this service would need to be paid for with CyRide local dollars s opposed to the current 20%.

Trustee Madden shared that he does not oppose setting a goal or incentive, but that he wants to be supportive of HIRTA. He stated that HIRTA service is not equivalent to a taxi service, and that this is not their directive. He indicated that this level of service is beyond what he believes is reasonable for HIRTA to operate.

Trustee Haila referenced the last transit board meeting when Ms. Dreesman was in attendance and indicated that he was sympathetic toward Dial-A-Ride passengers; however, was disappointed when specific information (customer names, specific instances) was not provided that would document the perceived dissatisfaction with service. He shared that CyRide does not have the financial funding to support this service in house.

Trustee Madden shared that it would be difficult to develop an incentive performance measure.

Trustee Goodman said he had received comments from Lutheran Services of Iowa (LSI) and Main Stream Living and that they are very frustrated. He indicated that they had stated that when their clients call HIRTA's customer service number that HIRTA hangs up on them and believes that the city/CyRide is in some way ignoring its customers. Trustee Goodman acknowledged that only an ADA level of service should be provided within the community.

Trustee Madden indicated that he supports the incentive approach if other groups are having issues, but indicated his general observation was that all people are getting treated the same way.

Director Kyras said the problem is the same for HIRTA service as it is for CyRide service - there are peak times and passenger's desired pickup times have to be modified to accommodate all trips. She indicated that some changes can be made; however, others are outside the ADA required service level.

Trustee Goodman shared that he believes HIRTA is not as committed as Heartland Senior Services was and that they are operating it more like a transit service. The question is does the transit board want to go above that level of service and provide more of a human service level of service. Trustee Goodman shared that he wants more for its customers. He asked the question of how to facilitate the improvement because at previous meetings the transit board discusses the issues and he believes the topic then goes away. Trustee Goodman shared that he would like to set up some type of goal through the annual survey that reflects their performance. He shared that the survey should have more specific questions, such as their interaction with customers, friendly customer service, and meeting customer expectations. He indicated that he believed some type of bonus could be provided based on the survey results. He requested CyRide staff to discuss this concept with HIRTA.

Trustee Madden was not ready to vote on a specific plan and understands the need to do something and is open to discussion. Interested parties need to talk about this concept and improving their performance; however, he was not willing to unilaterally move in this direction.

Trustee Goodman made a motion to approve the contact with HIRTA for the 2014-2015 budget year at approximately a 4% increase in rates with the caveat that a conversation regarding future percentage increases be tied to survey performance measures. Trustee Madden seconded the motion.

Trustee Haila asked what will happen if HIRTA does not agree to Trustee Goodman's concept. Trustee Goodman indicated that he would like to see if something can be worked out this year. He also suggested that CyRide staff should be willing to provide professional help with their customer service.

Motion on the floor was moved and seconded. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

Trustee Haila asked if Heartland Senior Services was interested in again providing DAR service. Director Kyras indicated that she had been told that Heartland Senior Services decision was final as they could not afford to provide the service any longer believing they were operating it at a deficit.

Trustee Schainker arrived at 4:12 p.m.

DIAL-A-RIDE REQUEST: Following the end of the last transit board meeting of April 23, 2014 and after a quorum was lost, Jan Dreesman made a request of the transit board to implementation a two-week demonstration project by adding an additional bus between 2:30 and 4:30 pm each weekday. The remaining transit board members asked to have the request placed on the May 21, 2014 transit board meeting agenda to be considered by the full transit board.

Director Kyras provided transit board members with an estimate of the cost to implement this demonstration project. She indicated that an additional bus and equipment would need to be purchased and drivers hired/trained as well as additional operating cost incurred, for a total estimate of \$52,700. She also shared that this could possibly be implemented for the next school year; however, she also indicated that the Ames School District would be changing their bell times alleviating the conflict with one of the two pick-up times offered to Ms. Dreesman.

Trustee Goodman asked if CyRide receives data from HIRTA which would include the number of people on the bus. Tom Davenport, CyRide's Transit Coordinator, shared that CyRide receives sample manifests and other data needed for reports to the federal government, but not maximum load counts as this is not an indicator of door-to-door capacity. He did indicated that the national average for passengers per hour for a paratransit, door-to-door type system is three and that this is the same number of passengers per hour that HIRTA is operating. He also indicated that when CyRide provided the service it operated at two passengers per hour.

The transit board members indicated agreement in not implementing the demonstration project, indicating it was only a partial resolution to this issue.

Trustee Haila made a motion to deny the request. Trustee Goodman seconded motion. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

CYRIDE PEAK PERIOD ANALYSIS: Director Kyras explained that, at the request of transit board members, CyRide staff was asked to determine the ten year savings that could occur if CyRide was able to reduce its highest peak hour time period. Director Kyras explained that staff first identified which routes impacted this highest peak period - Red, Blue and Orange routes. She explained that they then defined the highest peak period as:

Monday, Wednesday, and Friday from 8:00 am – 9:00 am. She then explained that they made a goal for each of the route's ridership reduction to accomplish a system-wide reduction during this higher time period. The ridership reduction goals for each route were: Red route – 200, Blue route – 100 and Orange route – 250. She then described the specific trips on each route that would need to be eliminated to accomplish these goals.

In analyzing the cost implications of these reductions, staff explained that the savings would be minimal as each of the trips identified for reduction were tied to trips scheduled after the reduced trips so that the savings resulted only from eliminating operating cost for the reduced trip (approximately a 20 minute time period) and would not reduce the total number of buses needed. Director Kyras explained that the total savings for the three routes was estimated at \$12,438 annually and \$124,430 over a tenyear period.

Trustee Goodman asked if there a way to rearrange the peak by moving passengers to a different time when buses are less full. Tom Davenport, CyRide's Transit Coordinator, explained that this could not be accomplished by just reducing trips in the peak period, but that a bus operating in the peak period would need to also be eliminated for a 2 1/2 to 4 hour period to accomplish the savings desired.

Trustee Madden shared that simply reducing the peak does not accomplish the goal as occupancy within the residence halls and apartments in turn requires seated capacity on buses. He questioned whether the desired goal could be accomplished through measures like changing student's class times. He confirmed that CyRide would somehow need to reduce the number of buses for CyRide to save money.

Trustee Schainker asked what impact redistribution of class times would have on ridership? He indicated that a long range policy needed to be developed, possibly modeled after large metropolitan areas.

Trustee Goodman asked for additional information on what it would take to reduce the number of buses more than during just the peak period times. Director Kyras said that

since the schedule ties trips together, a new schedule would need to be developed to see what kind of impact a reduction of this magnitude could have on CyRide's expenses. As staff is focused on addressing the current ridership increase and preparing for the Fall 2014 increase, she recommended hiring a consultant, who is familiar with creating schedules, to provide the level of data the transit board was desiring.

Trustee Goodman shared his concern that CyRide was requesting a million more dollars for capital and that additional operating expenditures to address growth would not be possible. Further, he shared that the current model is creating a lot of financial pressure and not allowing for other types of needs to be addressed, such as for better bus stops. Trustee Goodman asked how to go about finding a consultant to address this question. Director Kyras indicated there are a number of firms who can complete the work desired, but that she believes the first step is to develop a scope of work, in conjunction with the transit board, to make sure that the board's questions are addressed.

Trustee Madden stated that looking at ways to reduce ridership, such as moving class schedules, would involve himself and ISU staff. Additionally, he shared a concern over the level of congestion on Osborn Drive and is concerned about adding more buses to this area of campus.

Trustee Schainker questioned whether the system is sustainable if more buses are added. He asked if federal grants were available to study the efficiency of transit systems. Director Kyras responded that there was not grant funding for this purpose.

Trustee Haila asked if more Durham buses could provide assistance in reducing the peak time period. Directory Kyras explained that they could provide a maximum of seven school buses; however, she indicated that CIT Signature Transportation had recently purchased two urban transit buses, similar to CyRide buses, and that in the next several weeks CyRide staff was scheduled to meet with their staff to determine if there were opportunities to contract with them to assist CyRide.

Trustee Madden said that demand will only increase as additional services will be needed for the Research Park expansion project and that he is fine with talking with consultants.

Trustee Goodman indicated that student opinions on what is acceptable for the future are critical to receive during this process. A discussion on timing of a consultant study/scope of work ensued. Trustee Madden said the Fee Committee will meet June 23, 2014 and that this would be a good time for CyRide staff, student representatives, and university leaders to discuss fee options and the structure. Board members shared that they believe that it is important that President Murrell and Trustee Hamad attend

the June 23, 2014 Fee Committee to be part of the discussion, as well as the meeting afterwards with the transit board to discuss their comfort level with measures that could reduce or control ridership.

Trustee Goodman moved for CyRide staff to schedule a meeting between the transit board, GSB board, student leadership, and university leadership to discuss openness to change and to see if student representatives are reluctant or not open to change, then move forward with hiring a consultant following the Fee Committee meeting on June 23, 2014. Trustee Schainker seconded the motion. (Ayes: Five. Nays: None.) Motion carried.

TRANSIT DIRECTOR'S REPORT:

- Summer ridership is lower, which allows for more staff time on other projects to be completed. Projects for this summer include:
 - Maintenance purchased ten used buses from the St. Paul auction and will be getting these ready for service this fall. Nine out of 10 of the buses will be placed in service; the last bus will be used for parts only.
 - Maintenance and operations staff will work together on bus stop improvements using the \$50,000 budgeted this year for this project. Barb Neal shared that this was a preliminary list and that staff may need to modify it.
 - Operations focus is on hiring 30 drivers to assist with service at the beginning of the new school year. Summer trainer position approved in the budget will be beneficial to accomplishing this.
 - Administrative area is focusing on three projects this summer. Odyssey of the Mind, Triennial Review, and succession planning for Tom Davenport's position.
 Focus will be on cross training CyRide employees on the tasks within his position.
- A preliminary draft of CyRide's federal priority for inclusion in the Ames Chamber of Commerce's community priorities was presented. CyRide's priority will be to increase the Small Transit Intensive Cities funding from 1.5% to 3% of total transit funding. This could increase CyRide's funding by almost a million dollars.

Trustee Haila inquired if the delegation traveling to Washington, DC has the acquired knowledge to explain the importance of CyRide's funding priority or questioned whether a board member of staff should join the group presenting the priority in Washington DC in June. Trustee Schainker will be representing the City and will be able to provide CyRide information to the delegation.

Bruce Braley and Republican candidates will be in Ames for the 4th of July parade and Trustee Haila questioned whether time could be set aside to speak with each candidate about CyRide's critical funding needs.

Director Kyras shared a recent conversation she had with the owner of the new Copper Beach complex on S. 16th Street. He inquired as to whether additional Gray Route bus service could be implemented for the fall session. He discussed their three transportation options: help fund CyRide service, hire CIT to provide transportation, or purchase and operate their own bus. With information provided by the Director, they will consider these options and let CyRide know what their plans will be.

Trustees asked if the additional service could be implemented with current vehicles and staffing and was concerned about setting a precedence. Director Kyras said that it would add one bus and several drivers. Tom Davenport, Transit Coordinator, told the Board of Trustees, when the apartment complex on Pinion paid for two years of service. Also, when Sterling Apartments opened, they bought passes for residence for two years which allowed CyRide to use this as seed money for service to this area of Ames.

SET TIME AND PLACE FOR SUMMER MEETINGS: President Murrell noted June 25, 2014 at 3:15 p.m. as the next transit board meeting. Director Kyras mentioned there usually is not a July meeting, but identified a time in case a meeting is needed. The August 28, 2014 meeting date was moved to August 26, 2014 at 8:00 a.m.

Meeting adjourned at 5:31p.m.	
Zachary Murrell, President	Joanne Van Dyke, Recording Secretary

CITY OF AMES, Iowa

MEMO TO: Ames Transit Board of Trustees

FROM: Sheri Kyras

DATE: June 25, 2014

SUBJECT: New Grant Opportunity

BACKGROUND: CyRide's federal dollars are secured through Congressional action to first **authorize** funds under a Transportation Bill and then to annually **appropriate** a specific funding level to support transit activities. The current **authorization** bill is a two-year bill called, "MAP-21," which became effective on July 6, 2012 and will expire on September 30, 2014. Under this bill, funding levels and rights of smaller transit systems were negatively impacted limiting the opportunities to secure federal funding for transit capital needs. This is in direct contrast to the previous authorization bill, which was called "SAFETEA-LU."

On June 4, 2014, the Federal Transit Administration unexpectedly released a Notice of Funding Availability for a nationally competitive grant application process to distribute "left-over" discretionary funds allocated under the SAFETEA-LU bill. This new grant is called "Ladders of Opportunity." As this former bill allows for discretionary allocation of funds to transit systems, this is an unexpected and final grant opportunity for smaller transit systems to address capital needs, specifically for bus and facility needs.

INFORMATION:

Grant Requirements

The attached information describes the grant opportunity including: eligible applicants and projects, funding award requirements, evaluation criteria and grant-required information. The following briefly summarizes this information:

- Funds Available Nationwide: \$100 million
- Application Deadline: August 4, 2014
- Eligible Applicant: CyRide is eligible as a Direct Recipient of Federal Transit Administration funds
- **Eligible Projects:** Buses (replace/expand), bus-related equipment (ITS, fareboxes, etc.) and facilities (replace, construct, expand) no operating expenses

• Funding Award:

- Buses 85% federal, Bus-Related Equipment 80% federal, Facilities 80% federal
- No maximum or minimum award
- Grants must be scalable as they may/will reduce initial requests

Evaluation Criteria:

- Enhance Access to Work Taking Ames residents to work as well as ISU students to class would address this criteria
- o *Provides More Transportation Choices* With CyRide's ridership growth, a strong case can be made that more buses are needed to provide additional capacity
- Support Existing Communities A small community with large ridership will support this criteria
- Support Economic Opportunities CyRide can show a strong connection by linking students to education and preparing them for the workforce
- Support Partnerships The City-ISU partnership along with CyRide's partnership through the Human Services Council and United Ways' Transportation Collaboration Committee will address this criteria
- Project Readiness: Projects must be awarded (purchase order) within 12 months of award.

In light of CyRide's substantial capital needs for bus replacement/expansion and facilities, staff believes that preparing an application for this grant opportunity could place the system in a stronger position over the next several years. As a result, staff has developed a proposed bus expansion concept that could be developed into a grant application. With both bus and facility capital needs, staff believes that a stronger case can be made for bus expansion as opposed to facility expansion at this point in time. Additionally, it is easier to scale back the number of buses purchased as opposed to the size of a facility project.

The Bus Expansion Concept

The following assumptions were used to develop the grant concept:

- With the likely possibility that grant awards will be lower than requests due to the
 requirement of a "scalable" application, staff recommends applying for approximately
 twice the number of buses CyRide could fund in two budget years in anticipation of
 receiving as many new buses as financially possible with the last foreseeable
 opportunity for federally-funded new buses.
- In reviewing the new bus market the cost of a new 40' bus, equipped with radios, fareboxes, etc. is \$475,000 each and articulated buses \$750,000 each.

Staff is currently assessing the type of buses that would be most beneficial to CyRide's present operations (40' vs. articulated buses) and have developed three possible grant scenarios – each totaling approximately \$2.5 million in federal dollars and \$450,000 in local dollars, with the goal for each highlighted in gray.

Option 1 – 40' Bus Option

Bus #	Bus Type	Federal Dollars	Cumm. Fed. Dollars	Local Dollars	Cumm. Local Dollars
1	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$403,740	\$71,250	\$71,250
2	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$807,480	\$71,250	\$142,500
3	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$1,211,220	\$71,250	\$213,750
4	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$1,614,960	\$71,250	\$285,000
5	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$2,018,700	\$71,250	\$356,250
6	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$2,422,440	\$71,250	\$427,500

Option 2 - Artic. Bus Option

			Cumm. Local		
Bus #	Bus Type	Federal Dollars	Dollars	Local Dollars	Dollars
1	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$637,500	\$112,500	\$112,500
2	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$1,275,000	\$112,500	\$225,000
3	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$1,912,500	\$112,500	\$337,500
4	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$2,550,000	\$112,500	\$450,000

Option 3 - 40' and Artic. Option

			Cumm. Fed.		Cumm. Local
Bus #	Bus Type	Federal Dollars	Dollars	Local Dollars	Dollars
1	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$637,500	\$112,500	\$112,500
2	60' Bus	\$637,500	\$1,275,000	\$112,500	\$225,000
3	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$1,678,750	\$71,250	\$296,250
4	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$2,082,500	\$71,250	\$367,500
5	40' Bus	\$403,750	\$2,486,250	\$71,250	\$438,750

If the Transit Board chooses to proceed with a grant application, CyRide staff will select one of the three options it deems most beneficial and prepare an application for submission in late July. Staff's decision will be about which size of bus will provide the greatest benefit for CyRide into the future: smaller number of articulated buses or more 40' buses, and how additional articulated buses could be incorporated into the operations.

Local Funding

In the five-year capital plan, CyRide has programmed \$125,000 per year for bus purchases. If all applications currently submitted or proposed were approved, the following chart illustrates CyRide's commitments for these funds.

Year Purchased	Description	Local Funding Required
2013-2014	5- 40' Used Buses from St. Paul	\$100,000 - 125,000
2014-2015*	4- 40' Used Buses from St. Paul	\$100,000 - 125,000
2015-2016	2 Buses in Iowa Clean Air Attainment Grant	\$175,600
2016-2017	Ladders of Opportunity Buses	\$125,000
2017-2018	No Bus Purchases Planned	\$125,000

^{*}These buses were purchased in 2013-2014, but will be rehabilitated in 2014-2015 when a majority of the expenses will occur.

CyRide could award a bid (purchase order) close to the grant deadline of 12 months. Additionally, delivery times after award are 18 months later. As a result, buses purchased under this grant would not be delivered until the summer of 2017, most likely spanning two budget years - 2016-2017 and 2017-2018.

If CyRide is fortunate enough to receive full funding of the option submitted, a State of Iowa Revolving Loan could be secured. This is a no interest loan available to transit systems for bus capital that can be repaid over a five-year period; therefore, CyRide would require \$200,000 additional in local match that could be paid for at \$50,000 per year.

Fleet Age Impact

Currently CyRide's average fleet age is 9.9 yrs, which has increased from 8.7 years one year ago. In order to maintain this average age, CyRide would need to purchase seven new buses each year as 46 buses are part their FTA-defined useful life of 21 years. As this is not possible under the current funding environment, CyRide's average age will continue to increase. The following information provides the impact that applying for and receiving, or not applying/not receiving six buses under the Ladders of Opportunity grant would have on this fleet age.

	Age in 2017
With Six New Buses Under the Ladders of Opportunity Grant	11.2 years
Without Six New Buses Under the Ladders of Opportunity Grant	12.3 years
and Purchase of 18-Year Old Buses Instead	

To compare the impact of buses funded under this grant, both of these numbers assume that the six State of Good Repair-funded buses, which are currently on order, are delivered in the summer 2015 and that CyRide receives funding for two buses under the Iowa Clean Air Attainment Program, delivered in 2016.

ALTERNATIVE:

- 1. Approve submission of a Ladders of Opportunity grant application for the purchase of new buses, committing up to \$450,000 in local match.
- 2. Approve submission of a Ladders of Opportunity grant application for a board specified bus option.

- 3. Approve submission of a Ladders of Opportunity grant application for a board specified facility option.
- 4. Do not submit a Ladders of Opportunity grant application for new buses or facility expansion.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Transit Director recommends approval of Alternative #1 to submit an application for new buses, committing up to \$450,000 in local match to the grant. As this is the last foreseeable opportunity to purchase new buses, CyRide staff believes that its time is well spent in developing an application. With CyRide's rapid expansion, a strong application can be developed for consideration of funds to support CyRide's efforts. With funds currently programmed in the five-year capital plan and the possibility of a state, no-interest loan to spread out its local match requirement, staff believes that this grant opportunity would place CyRide in a better position to meet future service needs.

LADDERS OF OPPORTUNITY NOFA 5309 Bus/Bus Facility Program (SAFETEA-LU) Applications due 8/4/2014

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS:

- Direct recipients within the meaning of FTA's Section 5307 Urbanized Area Formula Program
- State Consolidated grants for rural, nonurbanized areas
- States may also apply on behalf of direct recipients; urbanized areas.

Eligible subrecipients include public agencies, private nonprofit organizations, private providers engaged in public transportation. No "Designated" Recipients (other than states on behalf of direct recipients or non-urban systems) ???

ELIGIBLE PROJECTS:

- BUSES purchase, replace or rehab buses/vans, bus related equipment (ITS equipment, fare equipment, communication devices)
- FACILITIES replace, construct, expand, rehab administration, maintenance, transfer
 and intermodal facilities AND costs incidental to these purposes. Incidental costs to the
 acquisition of buses or construction of a facility (workforce development activities
 designed to ensure that current/future employees are properly trained in the use of
 equipment/facility may be eligible.
- NO OPERATING EXPENSES/PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

FUNDING AWARD

- 85%/15% for ADA Capital for buses
- 80%/20% for non-ADA Capital for facilities
- No maximum/ no minimum Award
- Make grants scalable as may likely receive less than requested. FTA intends to fund as many meritorious projects as possible.
- FTA Administer awards grants
- Award may be based on geographic diversity
- Receipt of previous discretionary awards may be considered in final FTA award decision.
- Pre-award extended after projects selected by FTA
- Awards subject to Congressional Notification and release process

Project Evaluation Criteria

1. Ladders of Opportunity Policy Priorities

- a. **Enhance access to work** evaluates whether project will improve access for Americans with transportation disadvantages through reliable/timely access to employments centers, educational opportunities, services and other basic needs of workers
- Provides more Transportation Choices evaluates whether project will enhance user mobility through creation of more convenient transportation options for travelers
- Support Existing Communities evaluates whether project will increase community revitalization, improve public works investments or safeguard rural communities
- d. **Support Economic Opportunities** evaluates whether project will improve economic opportunities linking capital investments with local workforce development
- e. **Support Partnerships** evaluates whether applicant will form strong federal/local partnership to address the mobility challenge in bringing stakeholders together with representation from low-income, people with disabilities, youths, veterans, elderly populations, etc. to formulate plan to address building Ladders of Opportunity in an area.

2. Demonstration of Need

a. Bus projects

- Age of replacement/rehabilitation
- ii. Addresses verifiable backlog of deferred maint.
- iii. Consistency with bus fleet management plan
- iv. Condition/performance of asset to be replaced

b. Bus Facility/Equipment Projects (replacement/expansion)

- i. Age rehabilitated/replaced to useful life
- ii. Addresses verifiable backlog of deferred maint.
- iii. Degree project will enable CyRide to improve the maint/condition of fleet or other assets
- iv. Expansion project addresses current capacity constraint that's limiting ability of agency to address the policy priorities of the Ladders of Opportunity program listed above

c. Planning and Local/Regional Prioritization

- i. Project consistent with long range plan or local coordinated plan
- ii. TIP/STIP (note couldn't be in the TIP due to financial constraints but would need to be in STIP prior to grant award.)
- iii. Local support is demonstrated via local match/letters of support
- iv. Coordination with other transit operators or projects within MPO area.

d. Project Readiness

- i. CE complete or dCE complete
- ii. Implementation plans complete with initial design of facility projects

- iii. TIP/STIP can be amended (MPO/State endorsement)
- iv. Obligate within 12 months from time of award
- v. Ability to carry out project successfully
- vi. Multimodal? Coordination with other modes

e. Technical, legal and financial capacity to implement project

- i. Technical ability to administer project
- ii. Fleet replacement; consistent with management plan
- iii. No outstanding legal, technical or financial issues
- iv. Adequate financial systems in place; identified local match if selected
- v. Grantee in fundable status for grant-making purposes.

Submission Information

www.grants.gov by 8/4/2014

48 hours for electronic confirmation; encourage grantees to submit 72 hours in advance of deadline.

CITY OF AMES, Iowa

MEMO TO: Ames Transit Board of Trustees

FROM: Sheri Kyras

DATE: June 25, 2014

SUBJECT: ISU Special Student Fee & Tuition Committee Discussions

INFORMATION: Each summer/fall CyRide staff meets with the university's Special Student Fee & Tuition Committee comprised of GSB representatives and ISU administrative staff to discuss CyRide's student fee request for the following school year. Each year's request is based upon anticipated levels of service needed for the year being discussed, the estimated enrollment predictions and availability of funds in CyRide's GSB Trust Fund. As the year being discussed is 15-18 months into the future, discussions are centered on best estimates at the time. This year staff will be meeting with the committee on June 23, 2014 to discuss the student fee rate for the 2015-2016 budget/school year. Staff will summarize the request and discussion at the Transit Board meeting.

Additionally, at the May 21, 2014 Transit Board meeting, a request for a special meeting was made to be held in conjunction with the Special Student Fee & Tuition Committee meeting, which would include a larger group of students, ISU administrative staff and CyRide's Board of Trustees. Due to timing constraints of the Committee, this meeting has not yet been scheduled. Board members will be notified of this meeting when it is able to be scheduled through the Senior Vice President of Business and Finance's office.

Transit Director's Report

June 2014

1. Odyssey of the Minds Service

CyRide provided service from May 27 through June 1, 2014 for the Odyssey of the Minds event at Iowa State University's campus. This event brought over 14,000 visitors to Ames who extensively used CyRide's bus service to move between dorms and some hotels to buildings throughout campus. Ridership numbers below indicate a 9.6% increase in the number of rides provided this year compared to the last event in 2012.

Day of the Week	2014 Ridership	2012 Ridership	% Change
May 27	1,597	830	+92.4%
May 28	12,784	12,439	+2.8%
May 29	22,213	19,740	+12.5%
May 30	24,713	23,343	+5.9%
May 31	3,018	27,046	+11.0%
June 1	1,448	1,224	+18.3%
TOTAL	92,773	84,622	+9.6%

This service level stretches CyRide's smaller pool of summertime drivers to provide a nearly equivalent level of school-year service. One change this year was the addition of the articulated buses, which helped lessen this impact to some degree. This event will return to Ames in May 2016 on an every two year cycle.

2. HIRTA Discussion

CyRide's Director met with HIRTA's Director to share board member thoughts from the May 21, 2014 transit board meeting where the annual Dial-A-Ride (DAR) contract renewal was discussed. In summary, the conversation was positive and centered around trying to understand board members concerns and in finding a direction for the discussion regarding performance measures. As a result, the two Directors propose the following direction:

Expectations Meeting – Set a meeting with program funding agencies to determine
their expectations for Dial-A-Ride/HIRTA service. As the Directors began discussing
changes that could be made in the next contract, it became clear that additional
information was needed as to the desired level of service, beyond ADA service
expectations. This meeting could be scheduled with different agencies depending
on the focus of the services to be discussed.

- o **DAR Service Only** A meeting addressing only the DAR contract and service could include: CyRide and HIRTA staff, CyRide and HIRTA board members.
- All HIRTA Services As the ASSET group is responsible for the Non-DAR service, a larger group would need to be assembled: CyRide and HIRTA staff, CyRide and HIRTA board members, ASSET staff and board members, possibly Story County and United Way representatives.

Staff will need direction on the services to be discussed in order to invite the appropriate individuals to a service expectation meeting.

 Once expectations are established, then CyRide and HIRTA staff can develop possible performance goals for consideration by the funder's group. Once these goals are established, payment for services can be discussed by transit board members in preparation of the next DAR contract.

3. Possible Contracted Service

CyRide staff met with CIT Signature Transportation to determine if opportunities existed for collaboration using their two transit-style buses. In light of CyRide's increasing service levels, staff believes this is an opportunity to reduce peak demand times by reducing the number of buses owned and drivers hired by CyRide. Discussions regarding a demonstration project centered on the following:

- o **Maximum number of buses**: 2 (only 1 CIT bus has a lift), but CyRide could lease a bus to CIT for this service in the interim
- o **Time Period**: School year service only (no break days)
- o Route: Cardinal
- o **Time of Day:** Approx. 7 am until noon (over CyRide's highest peak time)
- Driver Training: Would need to know CyRide's routes and policies

CyRide staff will be developing this concept in greater depth and will submit its proposal to CIT for consideration. If it appears that the concept is beneficial to CyRide and staff believes a fall start to the project could be implemented, the tentatively scheduled July 30, 2014 board meeting would be needed to present the full concept to the transit board for consideration.

If the demonstration was implemented and if it was successful, CIT indicated that they would be willing to purchase up to six ADA accessible transit-style buses in the future that could be used in partnership with CyRide.

	July					
Sun	Mon	<i>Tue</i>	Wed 2	Thu 3	<i>Fri</i> 4	Sat 5
			_		Holiday	
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14 Sheri Vacation	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28 Sheri Vacation	29	Possible Transit Board Mtg. 3:15 p.m.	31 Triennial Review		
			Only if Needed			2014

A	ugust					
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri 1 Triennial Review	Sat 2
3	4 Sheri Vacation	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25 ISU Fall Semester Begins	26 Transit Board Mtg. 8:00 a.m.	27	28	29	30
31						014